STATE OF LOUISIANA

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

IN THE MATTER OF: * Settlement Tracking No.

* SA-AE-22-0043
GRAMERCY HOLDINGS I LLC *

*  Enforcement Tracking No.
Al # 1388 * AE-CN-19-00540

%
PROCEEDINGS UNDER THE LOUISIANA  *
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT *

&

LA. R.S. 30:2001, ET SEQ.

SETTLEMENT
The following Settlement is hereby agreed to between Atalco Gramercy LLC f/k/a Gramercy
Holdings I LLC (“Respondent”) and the Department of Environmental Quality (“DEQ” or “the
Department”), under authority granted by the Louisiana Environmental Quality Act, La. R.S.
30:2001, et seq. (“the Act™).
I
Respondent is a limited liability company that owns and/or operates an alumina extraction
facility located in Gramercy, St. James Parish, Louisiana (“the Facility™).
II
On October 27, 2020, the Department issued to Respondent a Consolidated Compliance
Order & Notice of Potential Penalty, Enforcement Tracking No. AE-CN-19-00540 (Exhibit 1).
111
Respondent denies it committed any violations or that it is liable for any fines, forfeitures

and/or penalties.




v
Nonetheless, Respondent, without making any admission of liability under state or federal
statute or regulation, agrees to pay, and the Department agrees to accept, a payment in the amount of
SEVENTY-FIVE THOUSAND AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($75,000.00), of which Two Thousand
Five Hundred Seventy-Nine and 80/100 Dollars ($2,579.80) represents the Department’s
enforcement costs, in settlement of the claims set forth in this agreement. The total amount of
money expended by Respondent on cash payments to the Department as described above, shall be
considered a civil penalty for tax purposes, as required by La. R.S. 30:2050.7(E)(1).
v
Respondent further agrees that the Department may consider the inspection report(s), permit
record(s), the Consolidated Compliance Order & Notice of Potential Penalty and this Settlement for
the purpose of determining compliance history in connection with any future enforcement or
permitting action by the Department against Respondent, and in any such action Respondent shall be
estopped from objecting to the above-referenced documents being considered as proving the
violations alleged herein for the sole purpose of determining Respondent's compliance history.
VI
This agreement shall be considered a final order of the Secretary for all purposes, including,
but not limited to, enforcement under La. R.S. 30:2025(G)(2), and Respondent hereby waives any
right to administrative or judicial review of the terms of this agreement, except such review as may
be required for interpretation of this agreement in any action by the Department to enforce this
agreement.
Vil

This settlement is being made in the interest of settling the state's claims and avoiding for
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both parties the expense and effort involved in litigation or an adjudicatory hearing. In agreeing to
the compromise and settlement, the Department considered the factors for issuing civil penalties set
forthin La. R. S. 30:2025(E) of the Act.
VIII

As required by law, the Department has submitted this Settlement Agreement to the
Louisiana Attorney General for approval or rejection. The Attorney General’s concurrence is
appended to this Settlement Agreement.

X

The Respondent has caused a public notice advertisement to be placed in the official journal
of the parish governing authority in St. James Parish, Louisiana. The advertisement, in form and
wording approved by the Department, announced the availability of this settlement for public view
and comment and the opportunity for a public hearing. Respondent has submitted an original proof-
of-publication affidavit and an original public notice to the Department and, as of the date this
Settlement is executed on behalf of the Department, more than forty-five (45) days have elapsed
since publication of the notice.

X

Payment is to be made within ten (10) days from notice of the Secretary's signature. If
payment is not received within that time, this Agreement is voidable at the option of the Department.
Payments are to be made by check, payable to the Department of Environmental Quality, and mailed
or delivered to the attention of Accountant Administrator, Financial Services Division, Department
of Environmental Quality, Post Office Box 4303, Baton Rouge, Louisiana, 70821-4303. Each

payment shall be accompanied by a completed Settlement Payment Form (Exhibit A).
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XI
In consideration of the above, any claims for penalties are hereby compromised and settled in
accordance with the terms of this Settlement.
XII
Each undersigned representative of the parties certifies that he or she is fully authorized to
execute this Settlement Agreement on behalf of his or her respective party, and to legally bind such

party to its terms and conditions.
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ATALCO GRAMERCY LLC F/K/A
GRAMERCY HOLDINGS I LLC

BY:

( )
\,[O&N %&%Js‘ﬂmw GevL

(Printed)
TITLE: PRESIDNVT
THUS DONE AND SIGNED in duplicate original before me this [ 3 day of
SepremBsan 2022 at__ >t JAMES Phessif-
~
NOTARY PUBLIC (ID #£& [/l 433

il Amold, Notary Public No. 161842

(stamped or printed)

LOUISIANA DEPARTMENT OF
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
Chuck Carr Brown, Ph.D., Secretary

State of Louisiana
Notary ID # 92503 ‘
East Baton Rouge Parish

@ (stamped or printed)
Approved: / LALL l

Celena & Cage, Ai&lsta{n% Secretary
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JouN BeL Epwarps
GOVERNOR

CHuck Carr Brown, Pu.D.
SECRETARY

State of Louisiana

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
OFFICE OF ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE

October 27,2020

CERTIFIED MAIL (7019 1120 0000 2352 1831)
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

GRAMERCY HOLDINGS I LLC
¢/o C T Corporation System

Agent for Service of Process

3867 Plaza Tower Drive

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70816

RE: CONSOLIDATED COMPLIANCE ORDER
& NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY
ENFORCEMENT TRACKING NO. AE-CN-19-00540
AGENCY INTEREST NO. 1388

Dear Sir/Madam:

Pursuant to the Louisiana Environmental Quality Act (La. R.S. 30:2001, et seq.), the attached
CONSOLIDATED COMPLIANCE ORDER & NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY is hereby
served on GRAMERCY HOLDINGS I LLC (RESPONDENT) for the violation(s) described therein.

Compliance is expected within the maximum time period established by each part of the
COMPLIANCE ORDER. The violation(s) cited in the CONSOLIDATED COMPLIANCE ORDER
& NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY could result in the issuance of a civil penalty or other
appropriate legal actions.

Any questions concerning this action should be directed to Antoinette Cobb at (225) 219-3072 or
via email at antoinette.cobb@la.gov.

Sincerely,

wf

elema J
Administrator EXHIBIT
Enforcement Division
CIC/AFC/afc g 1

Alt ID No. 2560-00002
Attachment

Post Office Box 4312  Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70821-4312 o Phone 225-219-3715 » Fax 225-219-3708
www.deq.louisiana.gov
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¢ Gramercy Holdings [ LLC
¢/o Mr. Brian Sullivan, Environmental Manager
1111 Aitline Highway Suite 3370
Gramercy, LA 70052
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STATE OF LOUISIANA
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

OFFICE OF ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE

IN THE MATTER OF *
E3
GRAMERCY HOLDINGS I LLC *  ENFORCEMENT TRACKING NO.
ST. JAMES PARISH *
ALT ID NO. 2560-00002 * AE-CN-19-00540
*
*  AGENCY INTEREST NO.
PROCEEDINGS UNDER THE LOUISIANA
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT, * 1388
La. R.S. 30:2001, ET SEQ. *
CONSOLIDATED

COMPLIANCE ORDER & NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY

The following CONSOLIDATED COMPLIANCE ORDER & NOTICE OF POTENTIAL
PENALTY is issued to GRAMERCY HOLDINGS I LLC (RESPONDENT) by the Louisiana
Department of Environmental Quality (the Department), under the authority granted by the Louisiana
Environmental Quality Act (the Act), La. R.S. 30:2001, et seq., and particularly by La. R.S. 30:2025(C),
30:2050.2 and 30:2050.3(B).

FINDINGS OF FACT
L

‘The Respondent owns and/or operates Noranda Alumina (facility), an alumina extraction facility,

located at 1111 Airline Highway in Gramercy, St. James Parish, Louisiana. The facility operates or has

operated under the authority of the following Title V Air Permits:
% ST ERSWTT

1”

2453-vio 02/11/2020 09/08/2022
2453-v9 02/22/201% 09/08/2022
Bauxite Processing Area, Products Area, and Power Area 24538 0572772018 09/08/2022
2453-v7 11/06/2017 09/08/2022

2453-V6 09/08/2017 09/08/2022
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LEFERCTIVE EXPIRATION DA,
2453-v§ 08/11/2015 02/15/2016
Red Mud Management Area 2481-V5 07/306/2018 07/30/2023
2481-v4 07/05/2012 07/05/2017
Cajunite Area 2387-v4 12/02/2019 06/30/2021
23872-v3 09/05/2017 06/30/2021
2387-v2 06/30/2016 06/30/2021
Prevention of Significant Deterioration Permit {PSD) PSD-LA-684(M-1) | 02/15/2011 02/15/2021

On or about December 12, 2016, the Department received a Name/Ownership/Operator Change
Form (NOC-1) for the facility. According to the NOC-1, the facility name, ownership, and operational
control changed, and permits transferred effective October 28, 2016, from the Noranda Alumina LLC
(Noranda), the previous owner and/or operator, to Gramercy Holdings | LLC (Respondent). Noranda
Alumina LLC a~~umed responsibility for all violations existing prior to the transfer of the permi-=

il.

On or about June 26, 2017 through August 8, 2017, the Department conducted a Full Compliance
Evaluation {(FCE) Inspection to determine the Respondent’s degree of compliance with the Act, the Air
Quality Regulations, and all applicable permits. A subsequent file review was conducted on or about
July 28-30, 2020. While the Department’s investigation is not yet complete, the following violations were
noted during the course of the inspection and/or file review:

A. The Respondent failed to comply with the flow rate as noted in the table below.

i EQY 0054 245315 04/29/2017 Flow rate f:::red:‘;tﬂr:ﬁ:teﬁ Specific Requirement
: Bauxite Sifo D/C {12-20 howurs} >280 gpm 17
75 gpm
" EQT 0054 sasays | 05/16/2017 Flow rate f:c":fdzztﬂ':z‘::f: Specific Requirement
" | Bauxite Silo D/C {24-32 hours) >=90 gpm 17
62.6 gpm
i EQT 06054 24535 05/27/2017 Flow rate f:::red:ztﬂr:\ﬁ;t:ﬁ Specific Requirement
* | Bauxite Silo §/C (12-20 hours) >=80 gpm 17
86.3 gpm
" EQT 0054 24535 06/07/2017 Flow rate f:::edgztf:;pi:f:_" Specific Requirement
* | Bauxite Silo D/C {12-20 hours) >290 gpm d W rate= 17
89.1 gpm
v EQT 0054 2453.v5 06/16/2017 Flow rate f:::: d‘;:tﬂfmr:::j Specific Requirement
| Bauxite Sito D/C {24-32 hours) >=90 gpm h 17
56 gpm
vi £EQT 0054 2453.V5 06/18/2017 Flow rate riiﬁ::gtﬂ'::‘:::ed; Specific Requirement
" { Bauxite Silo DfC 8-12 hours) >=90 gpm 88.5 gom 17
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" EQT 0054 2451V 06/24/2017 Flow rate :::cl':f d:ztﬂr;\t o:::i Specific Requirerment
Bauxite Silo D/C {12-20 hours} >=90 gpm 85.1 gom 17
il EQT 0054 24535 07/14/2017 Flow rate f::‘;:d:gt;:x:fi Specific Requirement
Bauxite Silo D/C {4-8 hours) >=90 gpm 82.5 gpm 17
£QT 0056 .
, Bel 4/5-6 07/14/2017 Flaw rate Ceuse natreported; | o 6 Boquitement
i 2453-vS recorded flow rate=
Transfer Dust {4-8 hours) >=90 gpm 172
87.3 gpm
Collector

Each failure to operate according to permitted requirements is a violation of any applicable

permit and  associated

requirement(s)  listed

above,

La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1), and 30:2057(A)(2).

LAC 33:111.501.C 4,

B. The Respondent failed to conduct daily visible emissions inspections as noted in the table
below '
i Aluming Storicgl: gﬁ‘ 2§ust Collector 2453-V5 December 3-5, 2016 Specific Requirement 226
ii. Alumina Storg(g): gi(:lzgust Collector 2453-v5 December 13-14, 2016 Specific Requirement 226
ili. Alumina Storiglgg: 23“( Collector 2453-V5 December 17-19, 2016 Specific Requirement 226
v, Aluming Stori?er gﬁ‘ 2£8}ust Collector 2453-v5 April 21, 2017 Specific Requirement 326
v, Aluming Storitgl: gﬁ‘ zis)us t Callector 2453-Vs May 31, 2017 Specific Requirement 226
R I Smr::':: ggfgu“ Collector 2453.v5 Iuly 8, 2017 Specific Requirement 226
vil. Alurnina Lozggue.ogjst Collector 2453-V5 Decernber 19, 2016 Specific Requirement 226
il Alumina Lo:dqsuctml)z:st Collector 2453-V5 December 29, 2016 Specific Requirement 226
% i Lo:ggﬁ"gfﬂ coflector 2453.V5 January 21, 2017 Specific Requirement 226
X. Alumina Lode:u{iO;:st Collector 2453-v5 lanuary 30-31, 2017 Specific Requirement 226
2 - Loig;u(ionz:st collector 2853V5 February 1-13, 2017 Specific Requirement 226
xH, Alumina Logggu‘iogjst Collector 2453-V5 February 16-22, 2017 Specific Requirement 226
xiil. Alumina Loggzu‘i();s;t Collector 2453-V5 February 25-26, 2017 Speclfic Requirement 226
xiv, Alumina mig:u(:o;fst Collector 2453-v5 March 1, 2017 Specific Requlrement 226
XV, Alurmin LOESZU(:O;fs ¢ Collector 2453.V5 March9-10, 2017 Specific Requirement 226
L (R 245335 March 28-29, 2017 Specific Requirement 226
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. EQT 0026 .
li. N
xvli Hydrate Loadout Dust Collector 2453-V5 Navember 22, 2016 Specific Requirement 116
EQT 0026 )
lil. R
xv Hydrate Loadout Dust Collectar 2453-v5 November 25, 2016 Specific Requirement 116
EQT Q026 .
ix. R .
xix Hydrate Loadaut Dust Collector 2453-V5 November 29-30, 2016 Specific Requirement 116
EQT 0026 .
. Hydrate Loadout Dust Collector 2453-v5 December 13-14, 2016 Specific Requirement 116
EQY 0026 - .
f, B .
XX Hydrate Loadout Dust Collectar 2453-V5 December 17-19, 2016 Specific Requirement 116
EQT 0026
il - -
xx Hydrate Loadout Dust Collector 2453-v5 December 22-23, 2016 Specific Requirement 116
EQT 0026 . .
xxlil. Hydrate Loadout Dust Collector 2453-V5 Dacember 25-31, 2016 Specific Reguirement 116
EQT 0026 .
v, Hydrate Loadout Dust Collectar 2453-v5 lanuary 1-31, 2017 Specific Requirement 116
£QT 0026 .
XXV, Hydrate Loadout Dust Collector 2453-V5 February 1-13, 2017 Specific Requirement 116
. EQT 0026 .
vl Hydrate Loadout Dust Collector 2453-v5 February 25, 2017 Specific Requirement 116
" EQT 0026 . .
Xxvil, Hydrate Loadout Dust Collector 2453-v5 February 26, 2017 Specific Requirement 116
EQT 0026 - '
xxvlil. Hydrate Loadout Dust Collector 2453-V5 March 3, 2017 Specific Requirement 115
EQY 0026 .
xix. Hydrate Loadout Dust Collector 2453-v5 March 28-30, 2017 Specific Requirement 116
EQT 0026 . :
X, Hydrate Loadaut Dust Collector 2453-VS Aprit 21, 2017 Specific Requirement 116
. EQT 0026 - .
xxxi. Hydrate Loadout Dust Collector 2453-V5 May 31, 2017 Specific Requirement 116
EQT 0120
. . October 28, 2016 40 CFR 64.6{c}{4),
wadi. | Rallroad Unloading and Conveyor 2453-V5 fanuary 9, 2017* Specific Requirement 214
System
ocxill £Qr Q121 2453.V5 October 28, 2016- 40 CFR 64.6{c)4),
) Barge Loading and Conveying December 31, 2016* Specific Requirement 214
* Inspections were not conducted prior to the change in ownership andfor operational control.
Each failure to conduct daily visible emissions inspections is a violation of any applicable
permit  and  associated  requirement(s) listed above, LAC 33:[11.501.CA4,
La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1), and 30:2057(A)(2).
C. The Respondent failed to maintain records of the alarms and cormrective actions for Power

Boilers Nos. 1-4 (EQT 0014-0017). Specific Requirement 204 of Title V Permit
No. 2453-V5 required the Respondent to keep records of oxygen content, alarm, and
corrective correctives for EQT 0014-0017 on-site, for five (5) years, and be available for
inspection by the Office of Environmental Compliance. Each failure to maintain records is
a violation of Specific Requirement 204 of Title V Permit No. 2453-V§5,
LAC33:H1.501.C4, and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(2). This requirement was removed in Title V
Permit No. 2453-V6 issued in September 8, 2017. In the Response to Information Request
dated June 22, 2020, the Respondent reported the electronic records of the oxygen content
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were maintained and provided during the inspection. The Respondent also reported
corrective actions were taken based on alerts and alarms when the oxygen content was
outside of the established range. Records of the oxygen content alarms and corrective
action were not manually recorded.

D. The Respondent failed to use and/or diligently maintain a control device, the fogging
system, for the West Dock Hoppers (EQT 0172 and 0174). The fogging system is used to
control dust cmissions during the unloading of bauxite from ships and into the hopper. On
July 20, 2017, a section of the fogging system was down, While the bauxite was being
loaded into the West Dock Hopper, dust was observed being emitted from the hopper and
traveling north across the Mississippi River. Failure to operate control equipment, any
device or contrivance, operating procedure or abatement scheme to prevent or reduce air
pollution, in the proper manner is a violation of LAC 33:11L.905.A and
La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and 30:2057(AX(2).

E. The Respondent failed to use and/or diligently maintain the Alumina Storage Bin
(EQT 0028). On July 20, 2017, visible emissions were observed from the vent of the west
dust collector for (EQT 0028). Failure to operate control equipment, any device or
contrivance, operating procedure or abatement scheme to prevent or reduce air pollution,
in the proper manner is a violation of LAC 33:111.905.A and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and
30:2057(AX2).

F. The Respondent failed to submit notification at least forty-five (45) days prior to the
deadline for the Kiln Nos. 1-3 (EQT 0018-0020) performance/emissions tests indicating
the tests would not be conducted by the specified deadline in Title V Permit No. 2453-V6
issued on September 8, 2017. Specific Requircment 154 of Title V Permit No, 2453-V6,
the renewal permit, required the Respondent to conduct performance/emissions tests for
the following scenarios within 180 days after the issuance of a permit renewal: 1) Each
kiln’s ESP operating with all banks and 2) Each kiln's ESP operating with one bank down.
The tests were due on or before March 8, 2018. The Respondent submitted the performance
test notification and extension request to the Department dated March 27, 2018, The
Department granted an extension of ninety (90) days to the performance test deadline on
May 4, 2018. Failure to submit notification at least forty-five (45) days prior to the
performance/emissions tests deadline is a violation of Specific Requirement 158 of Title V
Permit No. 2453-V6, ILAC 33:111.501.C.4, and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

G. Inthe Amended 2017 First Semiannual Monitoring Report dated March 28, 2018, the 2017
Second Semiannual Monitoring Report dated March 28, 2018, and the 2018 First
Semiannual Monitoring Report dated September 27, 2018, the Respondent reported the
failure to maintain completed compliance assurance monitoring documentation records.
According to the reports, records were incomplete for Railroad Unloading and Conveyor
System (EQT 0120) and Barge Loading and Conveying (EQT 0121) from
October 28, 2017 through December 31, 2017, and January 1, 2018 through May 10, 2018,
According to the Respondent, the alumina handling equipment was operated by a third
party and the Respondent was unable to locate the records after the third party left the
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facility. Lach failure to maintain records as required is a violation of 40 CFR 64.9(b)(1),
Specific Requirement 210 of Title V Permit No. 2453-V6 and Specific Requirement 281
of Title V Permit No. 2453-V7, LAC 33:111.501.C.4, and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

H. In the Amended 2017 First Semiannual Monitoring Report dated March 28, 2018, and the
2017 Second Semiannual Monitoring Report dated March 28, 2018, the Respondent
reported the failure to maintain completed compliance assurance monitoring
documentation records. According to the reports, records were incomplete for West Docker
Hopper/Belt 1 Transfer Phase II (EQT 0172), East Dock Hopper Phase [ (EQT 0173),
Backup Docker Hopper Phase 11 (EQT 0175), and East Dock Hopper/Belt 1 Transfer Phase
I (EQT 0176) from January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2017. According to the
Respondent, the alumina handling equipment was operated by a third party and the
Respondent was unable to locate the records after the third party left the facility. Each
failure to maintain records as required is a violation of 40 CFR 64.9(b)(1).

I In the 2018 First Semiannual Report dated September 27, 2018, the Respondent reported
the failure to maintain completed compliance assurance monitoring documentation
records. .ccording to the report, records were incomplete for West Docker Hopper/Belt i
Transfer Phase 11 (EQT 0172), East Dock Hopper Phase Il (EQT 0173), Backup Docker
Hopper Phase [1 (EQT 0175), and East Dock Hopper/Belt 1 Transfer Phase 1 (EQT 0176)
from January 1, 2018 through June 22, 2018. According to the Respondent, records were
not maintained due to inadequate training of operations personnel regarding maintaining
the records. Each failure to maintain records as required is a violation of 40 CFR 64.9(b)(1).

J. Inthe 14-Day Excess Emissions Report dated August 27, 2019, the Respondent reported a
performance test for the Pneumatic Conveying System Baghouse (EQT 0198) work bin
vent was not conducted as required by 40 CFR 60, Subparts A and LL. Pursuant to
40 CFR 60.8(a) and referenced in 40 CFR 60.385(a), the Respondent was required to
conduct a performance test within 60 days after achieving the maximum production rate at
which the affected facility will be operated, but not later than 180 days after initial startup.
Failure to conduct the performance test is a violation of 40 CFR 60.8(a), 40 CFR 60.385(a),
Specific Requirement 394 of Title V Permit No. 2453-V9, LAC 33:111.501.C.4, and
La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(2). The violation was also reported in the 2019 First Semiannual
Monitoring Report dated September 30, 2019 and the 2019 Second Semiannual Monitoring
Report dated March 28, 2020. In the Response to Information Request dated June 22, 2020,
the Respondent reported the stack test should have been performed
June 18-21, 2019, when other associated sources were tested. The work bin vent was
inadvertently missed and a different source was tested because of miscommunication and
incorrect identified of the sources which required festing. The work bin stack was tested
on October 1, 2019.

K. In the 14-Day Excess Emissions Report dated August 27, 2019, the Respondent reported
the truck/rail loadout baghouse was not permitted. Failure to submit a permit application
to the permitting authority prior to construction, reconstruction, or modification is a
violation of LAC 33:111.501.C.1 and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(2). The unauthorized operation
of the source prior to the issuance of a permit is a violation of LAC 33:111.501.C.2 and
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La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and 30:2057(A)(2). The violation was also reported in the 2019
First Semiannual Monitoring Report dated September 30, 2019, and the 2019 Second
Semiannual Monitoring Report dated March 28, 2020. A permit modification for Title V
Permit No. 2453-V9 was submitted to the Department in June 2019 and a supplement to
the application was submitted on Qctober 8, 2019. Title V Permit No. 2453-V10 was issued
on February 11, 2020, adding the emission source as a permitted source, Dry Hydrate
Truck/Rail Loadout D/C (EQT 0221).

. In the 14-Day Excess Emissions Report dated August 27, 2019, the Respondent reported

excess fugitive emissions Product Area PM Fugitives LXX (FUG 0001) and Product Area
PM Fugitives LXXLL (FUG 0045) from the hydrate conveying operations. According to
the Respondent, the new Dust Collection System at the Hydrate Silo was not properly
capturing and controlling particulate emissions associated with the new Pneumatic Hydrate
Product Conveying System. Each failure to comply with the permitted emission limits is a
violation of Title V Permit No. 2453-V9, LAC 33:111.501.C 4, and La. R.S. 30:2057(AX1)
and 30:2057(A)2). A variance for the unpermitted (or excess) emissions for FUG 0045
was issued on November 1, 2019 with an October 28, 2020 expiration date. The violation
was also reported in the 205 First Semiannual Monitoring Report dated September 30,
2019, and the 2019 Second Semiannual Monitoring Report dated March 28, 2020.

. In the Update to the 14-Day Excess Emissions Report dated December 13, 2019, the

Respondent reported performance emissions tests were conducted for the Pneumatic
Conveying System Baghouse (EQT 0198) and the Hydrate Loadout Dust Collector No. 1
(EQT 0026). The preliminary test results indicated emissions is excess of the permit limits.
Each failure to comply with the permitted emission limits is a violation of Title V Permit
No. 2453-V9, LAC 33:111.501.C.4, and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and 30:2057(A)(2). The
violations were also reported in the 2019 Second Semiannual Monitoring Report dated
March 28, 2020. On or about July 10, 2020, the Respondent submitted the test notification
and protocol for EQT 0026 and 0198 to the Department. The Department approved the
testing protocol on July 13, 2020. The Respondent proposed a test date of
September 1-2, 2020.

N. The Respondent reported the following violations of permitted operating parameters: _

——
The pressure drop
Pressute dro across the scrubber
2019 1% Semiannual EQTO0S4 | 01/03/2019 Vel waslessthan 11.25
o 2453 ) »211.25 A0 CFR 64.6(c)(2),
[ Monitoring Report VB9 Bauxite Silo 06/20/2019 Inches of inches of water Specific Requirament 72
(05/30/2015) o/ {243 hours) periodic buitd-upof | °° o4
water L
dust inside the duct
waork vacuum lines
Scrubber The scrubber make-up
2019 1 Semiannuat €Q7 0054 01/03/2015- water was less than
i, Monitoring Report 5;?39 BauxiteSifo | 06/30/2019 wT:::f;o 90 gpm. Water e | :?ﬁi?:if:g‘f:‘l n
{09/30/2019) o/ {342 hours) gpn: Intermittent restricted pe 4
flow
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SRR R e
Tha East and West
2018 1* Semiannual eqro02? | 082372015 Conveyor Bells were _
i, Monitoring Repart 2453y Hot End 04/24/2019 OP;;*;SV Iburiled in p‘;o;:uckl als l;‘ic :3"".‘ 13“111‘:“ 156
(05/30/2019} Baghouse (8 hours) <= {alumina) an acv [ pecific Requireme
up i the production
process.
Prevent
particufate The East and West
2019 1% Semiannuai FUG 0001 04/23/2019- matter from Cnnveya‘r Befts were .
e, Monitoring Report 2453-v§ Products Area 04/24/2019 l‘:er,ommg buried in product l.AC 33"&."1305'
. airbarne by {atumina) and backed | Specific Requirement 1286
(08/30/2019} FM Fugitives {8 haurs) N
taking all up In the production
reasonable process,
precautions.
The efectrical service
was out to the dust
collector and it was
. not {n-service durlng
2019 1% Semiannual 2453- £Q7 0060 01/31/2013- Opacity bauxite unloading LAC 33:HE.1311.C,
v Manitoring Repart vajvg | Deft2/30ust | 02/04/2019 <220% during this time. The | Specific Requirement 28
{09/30/2019) Coflector 36 haurs) uring T Hime. P a
electrical service was
down for
agproximately four (4]
days.
The electrical sarvice
Pravent was out to the dust
particulate collector and it was
. FUG 0010 matter from not in-service during
2018 1% §emaannual 2453- Belt 2-3 01/31/2013- becoming bauxite unloading LAC 33:111.2305,
vi. Monitoring Repart 02/04/201% . L ) .
{09/30/2019) va/vg 'Eraf\sfer (36 hours) alrht?rne by during this tm}e. The Specific Requirement 35
Fugitives taking ail electrical setvice was
reasonable down for
precautions. | approximately four {4)
days.
EQT 0059
2018 Annual Scrubber 2483 Bauxite 0B/08/2019 | Scrubber flow
wil, Report VENS Storage {one-& hour rate water>=s Not reported Specific Requirerment 29
{03/23/2020) Bullding S£ period) SO gpm
Dust Collector
2019 2 Semianaual EQT0054 | 08/03/2015- P'e:f‘l‘;ez‘i“’” Periodic bulld-up of 40 CFR64.6(cH2)
wiit, Manitoring Report 2453.v9 Bauxite Silo 12/31/2018 In;be; of dust inside the duct Specific Requ;re:nen'l 72
{03/28/2020) B/ (79 hours) water work vacuum lines
2019 2 Semiannual eqroosa | os/o3/2010- ::‘;:b:; Water fine 40 CFR 64.6(c1{2)
ix. !_Hnnltorlng Report 2453-v9 Bauxite Silo 12/31/2019 water>= 50 intermittent restricted Specific Re uiremen,t 72
(03/28/2020) o/t {265 hours) ;;m flow P 4

Each failure to operate according to permitted requirements is a violation of any applicable permit and
associated requirement(s) listed above, LAC 33:111.501.C.4, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1), and 30:2057(A)(2).

0. The Respondent failed to meet the following reporting requirements:

2387.v3,

2018 Annual

Submit the annual

Compliance compliance certification by .
Certification 2215831\\:1[{:? March 317 for the preceding 03/31/2019 04/01/2013 LAC 33:11.535
{04/01/20139) calendar year
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Eg

REQUIREMENT

2018 Annual Report-
Serubiber Flow Rate 2453 VNG
{04/01/2019)

Submit report: due annually
by the 317 of March for the

preceding catendar year,
List the hours that the

scrubber operated out of

the rang

as specified

03/31/2019

04/01/2019

Specific Requirement 27, 32,
and 247

Each failure to mect reporting requirements is a violation of applicable permit and associated
requirement(s) listed above, LAC 33:111.501.C.4, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1), and 30:2057(A)(2).

P. The Respondent reported the following emission exceedances:

e, | ewssion | MOST | TL s | nevonmey | 1o AteoR f -
g e EUMBER POINT 5 {duration) 1 - {permitmit) § " {unlt) o f CAUSE ...
2016 2 Semiannyal EQT 0020 | 12/12/2016 ) .
i Maonltoring Report 2453.v5 2713 12/31/2016 {11 3';&[:;': :b Jhr} 0.59 fons* Bank 2B out Emisslor;:;:ﬁ:::r Criterla
(03/29/2017) KiinNo. 2 | (456 hours} : *
Amended 2017 1%
EQT0019 | 06/18/2017- Bank 1A out . .
. Semlannual PMuors - Emission Rates for Criteria
i Monitoring Report 24535 xnl';s 1 ?g;:(gjoé; {7.13 max Ib/hr) 0.23 tons* Commum:atlon Poliutants
(03/28/2018) n No. u erro
Amended 2017 1%
- Semiannual 2453V8 EQ;_ 3220 il{/zgl/zz?}g PMugs 4.76 tons* Bank 2Band 20 | Emission Rates for Criteria
' Monitoring Report Kiln No. 2 (528 hours} {1134 max Ib/hr} ’ out Tripped Pollutants
(03/28/2018) NN, v
2017 2™ Semiannual EQT 0019 | 07/0172007- . .,
. | Monitoring Repart 24536 173 orpsap0nr | 1: x;”;‘l;’ ) 0.27 tons* 3’.?:: 1A :"' E"““’“';zﬁ:‘:;;f: Criteria
{03/28/2018) Kiln No. 1 | (336 hours) : e
2017 2™ Semiannual EQT 0019 | 07/19/2017- R _
v. | Monitoring Report 24536 173 R 1: ::;T:; ny | O08tonse B";’: 1’: o ﬁ'“'“‘"';,:;:i::‘:’ Criteria
{03/28/2018) KilaNo.1 | (96 hours) ' PP 3
2017 2~ Semiannual EQT0018 | 09/0272017- . o
. | Monitoring Report 2453.v6 1-70 osos207 | 2: :;‘m o | 049tonst Ba:: 3¢ :“‘ E’“‘“"";:ﬁ:;;f: Celteria
{03/28/2018) Kiln No.3 | (144 hours} ' ppe
2017 2 Semianaual QT o020 | 11/04/2017- Bank 20 , .
vii | Monitoring Report 2453.v7 273 worow | 32'?“‘:;‘ " ney | 009tons? Communication Emi‘”"’:ﬁﬁ::{t Criteria
(03/28/2018) Kidn No. 2 {72 hours} ’ error
2017 2 Semiznnual EQF0019 | 1271072017 . -
vil, | Monitoring Report | 24537 173 upiyo | 1; :::Ii: ny | Odntonst aaT":: 1 :"* Em“’"":,;ﬂ::;‘t’s’ Criteria
103/28/2018) KitnNo.1 | (504 hours) : ope
2018 1" Semiannual EQT 0019 | 01/01/2018- ..
i. | Monitoring Report | 24537 173 | ossnose | e my | 03stons® Bak 1¢ out E’“"“"‘;:g‘i::‘:s‘ Crited
{05/27/2018) KinNo.1 | (432 hours) ' ppe Y
2018 1% Semiannual EQT 0019 02/05/2018- , .
x. | Monitoring Report 2453v7 1.73 w8 | 1; :;‘:’i; o | O15tons® Ba;'"i‘ 2pceguz Em”““';:ﬁb‘:;;‘:; Criteria
(09/27/2018) KinNo.1 { (184 hours) : i
2018 1# Semiannual EQT 0018 02/11/2018- . .
s, | MonktoringReport | 2453v7 170 oz/227m8 | o ; :::’i'; my | 0%0tons B“;‘n’f 3‘;;’“‘ E"“‘”"':,:;ﬁ;:f: Criteria
(09/27/2018) Kin No.3 | (264 hours) ) PP
2018 1* Semfannuat EQY 0020 | 03/15/2018- e oo
xil. | Monltoring Report 253v7 273 03/20/2018 | . 3?:1’:’: " g | 019tens® . a&“ﬂ:‘oﬁn . E’"“’""';,:;f“::‘:‘: Criteria
{09/27/2018) KintNo.2 | (144 hours) =
2018 1* Semiannuat EQT 0019 | Q3/23/2018- Bank 20 out R L
xii. | Monitoring Report 253.v7 173 oy0/2018 |, 1: ::fr;: my | ooztens Commuaication Em'“'"’:;:::{:‘;‘: Criteria
{09/22/2018) Kiln No. 1 {24 hours) ) error

*Quantity provided in the Response to Information Request dated June 22, 2020,
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Each emission exceedance is a violation of any applicable permit and associated requirement(s) listed
above, LAC 33:111.501.C.4, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1), and 30:2057(A)(2).

1L,

A Compliant Investigation was conducted on or about June 16, 2020, in regards to compliant
received on June 14, 2020, [Agency Incident No. T197328], of orange and white dust on a resident’s
vehicle. During the investigation, emissions were observed from a vent in the Alumina Storage Bin Dust
Collector (EQT 0028). A review of maintenance record for June 16, 2020, showed maintenance, change
of socks, was conducted on the east and middie dust collector bin. The visible emissions observed during
the investigation originated from the west side of the bin. The visible emissions, white particulate,
indicated, the dust collectors on Alumina Storage Bin Dust Collector control devices were not used and/or
maintained in proper working order. Failure to use and/or diligently maintain a control device *n proper
working order is a violation of LAC 33:111.905 and La. R.S, 30:2057(A)(2). The maintenance record for
June 17, 2020, showed maintenance, change of socks, was conducted on the west and middle collectors
on June 17, 2020. The facility is required monitor for visible emissions for EQT 0028 by visual
inspection/determination daily and maintain records by electronic or hard copy. The Respondent failed to
maintain records of visible emissions for EQT 0028 for the period of June 1, 2020 through June 16, 2020.
Failure to comply with recordkeeping requirements is a violation of Specific Requirement 114 of Title V
Permit No. 2453-V11, LAC 33:1I1.501.C 4, and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

V.

The Respondent reported the deviations listed in the table below:

' FLINCIDENT i
e SR
2018 2™ Semiannual EQT 0019 09/02/2018- An exceedance is
I, Monitoering Report 3‘7‘?\?8 1-73 11/04/2018 defined as any of the Comriz:c?:l:::-rror'
(03/29/2019) Kiln No. 1 {1,512 hours) | ESP banks being down.
2018 2™ Semiannual EQT 0019 09/02/2018- An exceedance is Bank 18 out
il. Monitoring Report 2453-v7 1-73 09/05/2018 defined as any of the Trioped®
{03/29/2019) Kiln No, 1 {72hours) | ESP banks being down. ppe
2018 2 Semiannual EQT 0020 10/12/2018- An exceedance is Bank 20 out
lik. Monltoring Report 2453-v8 2-73 10/13/2018 defined as any of the Trioped*
{63/29/2019) Kiln No. ? (24 hours) | ESP banks belng down. pe
2018 2™ Semlannual EQT 0020 12/28/2018- An exceedance is Bank 24
v, Monitoring Report 2453-va 2-73 12/31/2018 defined as any of the Blown fuse®
{03/29/2019) Kifn No. 2 {84 hours) ESP banks being down.

10
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i

¥ uratdn}; 3 5
2018 2 Semiannual EQT 0018 D8/24/2018- .
v. | Monitoringgeport | 2453.v7 170 08/26/2018 Milliamps range Bank3C
(03/29/2019) KinNe.3 | (72hours) 100-2000 maA tow milliamps
2019 1* Semiznnual 01/20/2019- An exceedance is
vi. Manitoring Report 5;;59 ifllr;rl‘{:g Ii 04/10/2019 defined as any of the Binlk lAda.ut
{09/30/2019) " {1,944 hours) | ESP banks being down. rippe
An excursion or
exceedance is defined
as a daily average of
the voltage or the
current intensity of
tha electrostatic
precipitator is outside
of the respective
2019 17 Sermiannual EQT 0023 04/19/2019- ranges of {12-45] Bank 14 out
wii. Monitoring Report 2453-v9 Hydrate 0472372019 kilovolts and [100- Trinped®
{09/30/2019) Dryer No. 1 {120 hours} 1000] milliamps. ‘ape
An excursion is also
any missed daily
reading of the average
daily voitage or
current intensity of
the ESP that is not due
to a planned or
demand shutdewn.
2019 1* Semiannual 2453 £QT 0020 01/01/2019- An exceedance is Bank 2A
vlii. Manitoring Report V89 ¥ifn No. 2 01/04/2019 defined as any of the Wires burned out and
{09/30/2019) ’ {96 hours) ESP banks being down. blown fuse*®
An excursion or
exceedance is defined
as a daily average of
the voltage or the
current intensity of
the electrostatic
precipitator is outside
of the respective
2019 1% Semiannual 2453. EQT 0023 02/14/2019- ranges of [12-45)
1, Monitaring Report VBAD Hydrate 02/22/2019 kilovolts and [100- Bank 2A tripped™
{09/30/2019) Dryer No. 1 {216 hours) 1000} milliamps.
An excursion is also
any missed daily
reading of the average
daily voltage or
current intensity of
the ESP that Is not due
ta 4 planned or
demand shutdown.
2019 17 Semiannual 04/10/2019- An exceedance s
X Monitoring Report 3;;% iﬁ;:ﬁlg 04/14/2019 defined as any of the Loa'agrui':lts
{09/30/2019) ) {120 hours) £5P banks being down.
2019 2™ Semiannual EQT 0019 07/01/2019- An exceedance is
xi. Monitoring Report 2453-v9 Kiln No. 1 09/22/2019 defined as any of the Bank 1A out-tripped
{03/28/2020) i (2,016 hours) | ESP banks being down.

11
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An excursion or
exceedance is defined
as a dalty average of
the voltage or the
current intensity of
the electrostatic
précipitator Is outside
of the respective

2019 2* Semiznnyal EQT 0023 10/13/2019- ranges of [12-45)
xil. Manitoring Report 2453-V9 Hydrate 12f14/2019 kifavelts and {100- Bank 1A out-tripped
{03/28/2020) Dryer No. 1 {1,488 hours) 1000] milliamps.

An excursion Is also
any missed daily
reading of the average
daily voltage or
current intensity of
the ESP that is not due
to 3 planned or

demand shutdown.
2019 2™ Semiannual EQT 0020 09/01/2019- An exceedance is
ii. Manitoring Report 24538 Kiln No. 2 09/03/2019 defined 3s any of the Bank 2B tripped
{03/28/2070) i {48 houts) ESP banks belng down.
2019 2™ Semiannual £QT 0023 09/01/2019- An exceedance i§
xiv. Monitoring Report 2453-v9 Hydrate 03/03/2019 defined as any of the Bank 28 tripped
{03/28/2020) Dryer No, 1 {48 hours} E5SP banks being down,
2019 2™ Semiannual EQT 0018 12/28/2018- An exceedance is
xv. Maonitoring Report 2453-v9 Kiln No. 3 12/31/2019 defined as any of the Bank 3A-low kifovolts
(03/28/2020) ) (72 houyrs} ESP hanks belag down.

* In the Response to Information Request dated June 22, 2020, the Respondent reported the kiln feed rate was limited. There
were no excess emissions during this period.

COMPLIANCE ORDER
Based on the foregoing, the Respondent is hereby ordered:
L
To take, immediately upon receipt of this COMPLIANCE ORDER, any and all steps necessary
to meet and maintain compliance with the Act, the Air Quality Regulations, and all applicable permits.
I
To submit to the Enforcement Division, within thirty (30) days after receipt of this
COMPLIANCE ORDER, a written compliance plan as related to the violation cited in Paragraph I1. L
of the FINDINGS OF FACT portion of the action. The plan shall include, but not be limited to, the
following information: 1) corrective actions implemented or will be implemented to minimize fugitive
emissions, and 2) the progress of the engineering studies being conducted.
M.
To submit to the Air Planning and Assessment Division-Emissions Inventory Unit, within thirty
(30) days after receipt of this COMPLIANCE ORDER, revised Emissions Inventories and

12
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corresponding certification statements as necessary to account for emissions as related to Paragraph 1.0
of the FINDINGS OF FACT portion of this action. Copies of the signed certification statement(s) shall
be submitted to the Enforcement Division.

Iv.

To submit to the Enforcement Division, within thirty (30) days after receipt of this
COMPLIANCE ORDER, a copy of the Quality Improvement Plan (QIP) implemented to address the
deviations reported in Paragraph IV of the FINDINGS OF FACT portion of this action.

V.

To submit to the Enforcement Division, within thirty (30) days after receipt of this
COMPLIANCE ORDER, a written report that includes a detailed description of the circumstances
surrounding the cited violations and actions taken or to be taken to achieve compliance with the Order

. Portion of this COMPLIANCE ORDER. This report and all other reports or information required to be
submitted to the Enforcement Division by this COMPLIANCE ORDER shall be submitted to:

Office of Environmental Compliance

Post Office Box 4312

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70821-4312

Attn: Antoinette Cobb

Re:  Enforcement Tracking No. AE-CN-19-00540
Agency Interest No. 1388

THE RESPONDENT SHALL FURTHER BE ON NOTICE THAT:
[

The Respondent has a right to an adjudicatory hearing on a disputed issue of material fact or of
law arising from this COMPLIANCE ORDER. This right may be exercised by filing a written request
with the Secretary no later than thirty (30) days after receipt of this COMPLIANCE ORDER.

1.

The request for an adjudicatory hearing shall specify the provisions of the COMPLIANCE
ORDER on which the hearing is requested and shall briefly describe the basis for the request. This request
should reference the Enforcement Tracking Number and Agency Interest Number, which are located in

the upper right-hand corner of the first page of this document and should be directed to the following:

13
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Department of Environmental Quality

Office of the Secretary

Post Office Box 4302

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70821-4302

Attn: Hearings Clerk, Legal Division

Re:  Enforcement Tracking No. AE-CN-19-00540
Agency Interest No. 1388

HI.

Upon the Respondent's timely filing a request for a hearing, a hearing on the disputed issue of
material fact or of law regarding this COMPLIANCE ORDER may be scheduled by the Secretary of the
Department. The hearing shall be governed by the Act, the Administrative Procedure Act (La. R.S.
49:950, et seq.), and the Division of Administrative Law (DAL) Procedural Rules. The Department may
amend or supplement this COMPLIANCE ORDER prior to the hearing, after providing sufficient notice
and an opportunity for the preparation of a defense for the hearing.

Iv.

This COMPLIANCE ORDER shall become a final enforcement action unless the request for
hearing is timely filed. Failure to timely request a hearing constitutes a waiver of the Respondent's right
to a hearing on a disputed issue of material fact or of law under Section 2050.4 of the Act for the
violation(s) described herein.

V.

The Respondent's failure to request a hearing or to file an appeal or the Respondent’s withdrawal
of a request for hearing on this COMPLIANCE ORDER shall not preclude the Respondent from
contesting the findings of facts in any subsequent penalty action addressing the same violation(s), although
the Respondent is estopped from objecting to this COMPLIANCE ORDER becoming a permanent part
of its compliance history.

VI

Civil penalties of not more than twenty-seven thousand five hundred dollars ($27,500) for each
day of violation for the violation(s) described herein may be assessed. For violations which occurred on
August 15, 2004, or after, civil penalties of not more than thirty-two thousand five hundred dollars
($32,500) may be assessed for each day of violation. The Respondent's failure or refusal to comply with
this COMPLIANCE ORDER and the provisions herein will subject the Respondent to possible

enforcement procedures under La. R.S. 30:2025, which could result in the assessment of a civil penalty in

14
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an amount of not more than fifty thousand doflars ($50,000) for each day of continued violation or
noncompliance.
Vil.

For each violation described herein, the Department reserves the right to seek civil penalties in any
manner allowed by law, and nothing herein shall be construed to preclude the right to seek such penalties.
NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY
I.

Pursuant to La. R.S. 30:2050.3(B), you are hereby notified that the issuance of a penalty
assessment is being considered for the violation(s) described herein. Written comments may be filed
regarding the violation(s) and the contemplated penalty. If you elect to submit comments, it is requested
that they be submitted within ten (10) days of receipt of this notice.

1.

Prior to the issuance of additional appropriate enforcement action(s), you may request a meeting
with the Department to present any mitigating circumstances concerning the violation(s). 1f you would
like to have such a meeting, please contact Antoinette Cobb at (225) 219-3072 within ten (10) days of
receipt of this NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY.

HL

The Department is required by La. R.S. 30:2025(E)(3)(a) to consider the gross revenues of the
Respondent and the monetary benefits of noncompliance to determine whether a penalty will be assessed
and the amount of such penalty. Please forward the Respondent’s most current annual gross revenue
statement along with a statement of the monetary benefits of noncompliance for the cited violation(s) to
the above named contact person within ten (10) days of receipt of this NOTICE OF POTENTIAL
PENALTY. Include with your statement of monetary benefits the method(s) you utilized to arrive at the
sum. If you assert that no monetary benefits have been gained, you are to fully justify that statement. If
the Respondent chooses not to submit the requested most current annual gross revenues statement within
ten (10} days, it will be viewed by the Department as an admission that the Respondent has the ability to
pay the statutory maximum penalty as outlined in La. R.S. 30:2025.

IV.

The Department assesses civil penalties based on LAC 33:L.Subpart].Chapter?. To expedite

closure of this NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY portion, the Respondent may offer a settlement

amount to resolve any claim for civil penalties for the violation(s) described herein. The Respondent may

15
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offer a settlement amount, but the Department is under no obligation to enter into settlement negotiations.
The decision to proceed with a settlement is at the discretion of the Department. The settlement offer
amount may be entered on the attached “CONSOLIDATED COMPLIANCE ORDER AND NOTICE
OF POTENTIAL PENALTY REQUEST TO CLOSE” form. The Respondent must include a
justification of the offer. DO NOT submit payment of the offer amount with the form. The Department .
will review the settlement offer and notify the Respondent as to whether the offer is or is not accepted.
V.

This CONSOLIDATED COMPLIANCE ORDER & NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY

is effective upon receipt.
fe

Baton Rouge, Louisiana, this } ?7day of @d/{@ ‘%/ , 2020.

g

Lourdes lturralde™
Assistant Secretary
Office of Environmental Compliance

Capies of a request for a hearing and/or related correspondence should be sent to:

Louisiana Department of Environmental Quality
Office of Environmental Compliance
Enforcement Division

P.O. Box 4312

Baton Rouge, LA 70821-4312

Attention; Antoinette Cobb

16
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LOUISIANA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
OFFICE OF ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE

ENFORCEMENT DIVISION CONSOLIDATED COMPLIANCE ORDER &
POSLT OFFICE BOX 4312 NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY DEQ
BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA 70821-4312 REQUEST TC CLOSE LOUISIANA
Enforcement Tracking No. AE-CN-19-00540 Contact Name Antoinette Cobb
Agency Interest {Al) No. 1388 Contact Phone No. ' | {225) 219-3072
Alternate 1D No. 2560-00002
Respondent: Gramercy Holdings | LLC Facility Name: Noranda Alumina
¢/ C T Corporation System Physical Location: 1111 Airline Highway
Agent for Seyvice of Process
3867 Plaza Tower Drive City, State, Zip: Gramercy, LA 70052
Baton Rouge, LA 70816 Parish: St. James
STATEMENT QF COMPLIANCE
STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE Date Completed Copy Attached?

A written report was submitted in accordance with Paragraph V of the “Order” portion of the
COMPLIANCE ORDER,

All necessary documents were submitted to the Department within 30 days of receipt of the
COMPLIANCE ORDER in accardance with Paragraph(s} H-IV ef the “Order” portion of the
| COMPLIANCE ORDER.

All necessary documents were submitted to the Department within 45 days of receipt of the
COMPLIANCE ORDER in accordance with Paragraph(s) ? of the “Order” portion of the
COMPLIANCE ORDER.

All necessary documients were submitted to the Department within 90 days of receipt of the
COMPLIANCE ORDER in accordance with Paragraph(s) ? of the “Order” portion of the
COMPLIANCE QRDER.

All items In the “Findings of Fact” portion of the COMPLIANCE ORDER were addressed and
the facility is being operated to meet and maintain the requirements of the “Order” portion
of the COMPLIANCE ORDER. Final compliance was achieved as of:

SETTLEMENT OFFER (OPTIONAL)

{check the applicable option)

The Respondent is not interested in entering into settlement negotiations with the Department with the understanding that the
Department has the right to assess civil penalties based on LAC 33:1.Subpart1.Chapter7.

In order to resolve any claim for civil penalties for the violations in NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY {AE-CN-19-D0540), the
Respondent Is interested in entering into settlement negotiations with the Department and would like to set up a meeting to
discuss settlement procedures.

In order to resolve any claim for civil penalties for the violations in NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY {AE-CN-19-00540), the
Respondent is interested in entering into settlement negotiations with the Department and offers to pay

$ which shall include LDEQ enforcement costs and any monetary benefit of non-compliance.
* Monetary component = 5
» Beneficial Environmental Project {BEPjcomponent {optional)= S

* DO NOT SUBMIT PAYMENT OF THE OFFER WITH THIS FORM- the Department will review the settlement offer and notify the
Respondent as to whether the offer is or is not accepted.

The Respondent has reviewed the violations noted in NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY (AE-CN-19-00540) and has attached a
justification of its offer and a description of any BEPs if included in settlement offer.

17
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CERTIFICATION STATEMENT

I eertify, under pravisions in Louisigna and United Stotes faw that provide criminal penaities for false statements, that bosed on information
and belief formed ofter reasonable inquiry, the statements and information ottoched and the complionce statement gbove, ore true,
accurate, and complete. | also certify that I do not owe outstanding fees or penoities to the Deportment for this facility or ony other focility
1 own or operate. | further certify that | am either the Respondent or an authorized representative of the Respondent,

Respondent’s Signature

Respondent’s Printed Name

Respondent’s Title

Respondent’s Physlcal Address

Respondent’s Phone #

Date

MAIL COMPLETED DOCUMENT TO THE AODRESS BELOW:

Louisiana Department of Environmental Quality
Office of Environmental Comphiance
Enforcement Division

P.O. Box 4312

Baton Rouge, LA 70821

Attn: Antoinette Cobb

18




